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Constructed in 1913, the Colorado National Guard Armory is a single, detached
building made of cobblestone and located on the northwest corner of Thirteenth
and Arapahoe Streets in Golden, Colorado. The structure is basically rec-
tangular--123 feet long, 52 feet wide, and 65 feet high. On the west or main
facade there is a tower that projects about 20 feet outward and rises two
stories above the basic structure. The tower itself is 24 feet square. The
main facade has seven bays one of which is the tower projection having a door
on the first story and windows above. Both the north and south (or end) facades
have three bays while the east or back facade has seven bays. The north and
south ends each have a three-foot stepped parapet gable, as do all four sides of
the tower. The eaves on the other two sides of the main structure are closed
and do not project over the vertical wall. The roof is flat. On all four
corners of both the main structure and the tower, there are turrets which give
the building the appearance of a castle. The turret on the northwest corner

of the main building houses a chimney.

™he windows on the first floor have a flat top as the surround is basically

a plain lintel made of stone. The surround for the sills is a very plain
stepsill made of concrete. The windows are two-sashed--one double hung unit
with one pane of glass in each sash. The windows in the tower are of similar
construction, but the windows in the second story have lintels shaped from two
stones instead of one.

The main door is semi-elliptical and centered in the tower portion of the main
facade. The arch surrounding the door has radiating voussoirs built of
cobblestone while at the bottom of the arch there is a concrete block on each
side. Above the door is a cement ledge and above that the words "Armory,
N.G.C." From the lower part of the doorway there is a cement band that extends
around the building.

In recent times plate glass windows and double glass doors have been added

to the north side of the building, but except for this the exterior is
basically unchanged, and thus the Armory maintains its historic integrity. It
is alleged to be the largest cobblestone building in the world.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Armory Building is significant for its architectural featuregs--particularly
the uniqueness of the cobblestone construction in so large a building--for the
information the structure may render about cobblestone construction, for its
association with the Colorado School of Mines, and for its association with the
Colorado National Guard.

The idea for an armory in Golden was first conceived about 1912 by Captain W.
Goff Caples, U.S. Army, and Captain Joseph €. Taylor, commander of Company A,
National Guard of Colorado. The War Department had sent Caples to inspect
Company A as its troops participated in a summer camp near Golden. Caples and
Taylor both regarded the facilities as inadequate, and as a result, they invited
Dr. Victor C. Alderson, President of the Colorado School of Mines (located in
Golden), and General John Chase, Adjutant General of Colorado, to a conference
at which they all agreed that construction of an armory in Golden was a splendid
idea.

Planning and building went forward over the next year. James H. Gow, a well-
known Golden architect, drew up plans for a brick building, and Charles J.
Buckman, also of Golden, became the overall contractor. Money, however, proved
scarce; so it was decided to build the structure of cobblestones drawn from Clear
Creek, which flows through town. Construction apparently began in January 1913
and was completed in June and the armory dedicated with appropriate pomp and
circumstance.

Over the next few decades the Armory served as the headquarters of Company A of
the Engineer Corps, the only such unit west of the Mississippi River, and with one
exception, the only unit composed entirely of technical men. Students from the
School of Mines made up about twenty percent of the outfit, and it is said that
entire fraternities enlisted. Yet changes came later. After the structure

ceased being used as an armory, it was sold in 1971 to Ron Weiszman, a Golden
attorney, who restored and rehabilitated the structure for use as offices and
small shops. This work was completed in 1974.

Architecturally, the building is very unusual. Cobblestones were commnonly used
in Colorado to build small, vernacular structures. What makes the Armory so
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unique is the use of cobblestones on so large a scale and in such an ordered
manner. It is said that this is the largest cobblestone structure in the world,
although this contention is undocumented.
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